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About GIH
Established as a shareholding company with a paid-up capital of 16.4 Million (U.S $ 55 Million) 
and listed in Kuwait Stock Exchange, Gulf Investment House (GIH) is a leading GCC
financial services company.

GIH shareholders include prominent local and GCC corporations, and elite scholars forming 
its Islamic Shari'a Board. GIH's core business activities cover private equity and real estate 
invetment, in addition to providing financial services in the areas of investment funds.

GIH's investments broadly cover a vast geographic domain, including GCC, US, in addition to 
other selected markets.

Our Guiding Principles
In our dealings with customers, shareholders and business partners, GIH observes the 
following principles:

Shari'a Compliance
All GIH activities, external or internal, are compliant with the priciples of Islamic Shari'a.

Integrity
All GIH transactions are in compliance with World-class integrity and transparency standards.

Partnership
GIH operates with a mutually fruitful partnership spirit with all customers, shareholders and
stakeholders.

Decision-Making
Prudent, timely, and responsible decisions are made by GIH management, in conformity with 
a culture that aims at fostering teamwork.

Customer-Focused
GIH focuses on meeting shareholders and customers expectations.
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Shareholders of Gulf Investment House
Peace & Blessing of Allah be Upon You,,,

On behalf of the Board Members of Gulf Investment House (GIH), I am pleased to present 
to you the Annual Report of the Company for Financial Year ended on December 31, 2014.
You certainly are aware of the difficulties which the investment sector faces with the lack of 
liquidity in addition to markets fluctuation in the region; particularly the close association 
between the Region's Economies and Oil prices. 

During 2014, the Company's Management has strived to focus on raising liquidity ratios 
that have been adversely affected;moreover, the Company still suffers from the effect 
of the drop. In addition, the Company's Management was also concerned with repaying 
the Company's debts. Thanks to the Precautionary Hedging Policy which the Company 
adopts since its inception, the Company has managed to reduce the consequences on the 
Company's financial position and realized a number of promising accomplishments that 
have emphasized the Company's distinctive position as one of the leading companies in the 
Financial and Investment Services arena in the region. 

During 2014, the Company's General Assembly has approved reducing the capital from KD 
44,219,114 to KD 16,420,244  in order to write off the accumulated losses amounting to KD 
26,789,387.800 as of December 31, 2013. The Company has also repealed the employee's 
shares amounting to 10,094,822 shares. Furthermore, the Company has managed to reduce 
its debt in 2014 by KD 5.66 million; thus the total debt stands atKD 35.90 million according 
to a calculated repayment plan that runs in parallel with the Company's

Chairman's Message Talal K. Al-Nesef
Chairman
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Liabilities. Such plan was developed for the purpose of reducing the Company's debts. 
Noteworthy, the achievements of 2014 fall within the framework of the Strategic Plan 
that has been set by the esteemed Board of Directors. Such Strategic Plan hinges on 
several pivots; chief among which is reducing the Company's debt as well as increasing 
the revenues by maximizing the value of the Company's Assets.
 
During 2014, GIH has strived to set clear action Plans and thorough investment approach 
that benefits the present situation and explores the future. The aim here is that the Company 
aspires to restructure the investments portfolio by means of exiting a considerable part 
of non Income-Generating Investments and focusing on Investments in Operational and 
Lucrative Sectors. 

Concerning the Company's compliance with requirements of Capital Markets Authority 
and Supervisory Authorities, the Company has maintained its diligent efforts to enhance 
Transparency, Governance and Internal Control Systems in a way that is reflected on 
raising the level of sound institutional performance. 

I would like to seize this opportunity to extend sincere thanks and immense gratitude to 
our dear shareholders whose valuable trust, in which we take pride, has substantially 
supported the Company's activities and projects. I would also like to extend many thanks to 
the Board members and our strategic partners as well as the Company's employees who 
spared no efforts for the purpose of promoting the Company's performance and activities; 
wishing all of them health and welfare. I also wish our dear country Kuwait all prosperity, 
growth and development. 

In compliance with the corporate governance rules concerning integrity of financial reports, 
the Board of Directors pledges the integrity and accuracy of the financial statements of 2014 
as well as the reports associated with the Company's business. These reports are furnished 
to the external auditors in order for them to undertake their duties comprehensively.

With Regards to the remuneration of the members of the Board of Directors during the 
year 2014, the members of the board did not get any financial or in kind remuneration. No 
one of the board members received any salaries or indemnities except what was decided 
by the Board of Directors to pay the amount of KD 25,000 to the members of the Board of 
Director at the amount of KD 5,000 for each member. Such amount represents attendance 
allowance in the Meetings of the Committees emanating from the Board of Directors.

May Allah Bless All of Us.

Talal K. Al-Nesef
Chairman
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I. Framework

During 2014, the Gulf Investment House continued applying its approach to enable company 
governance in its pursuit of enhancing the levels of transparency and integrity in company 
operations. Moreover, a comprehensive review was made to the governance guidelines 
practices in force (as required by Capital Markets Authority in the State of Kuwait by virtue of 
its Resolution No. 25 of 2013 with respect to the issuance of the governance rules applicable 
to CMA regulated companies). In addition, the Company has already started all relevant 
requirements in this regard and it is in process to fulfill the other corporate governance 
requirements in 2015. To this end, this report has been prepared and an electronic copy 
thereof shall be available on the Company’s Web portal.

II. Corporate governance rules implementation commitment

(1) Establishing balanced structure

The Board of Directors started its current session – for three years – as per the resolution 
issued during the ordinary general assembly that was held on July 24, 2013 after obtaining 
the approval of the Capital Markets Authority with regards to the candidates of the board 
members. The Board constitutes of five non executive directors, including two independent 
directors having relevant qualifications and experiences in the company’s field of activity. 
The new directors are:   

1.  Talal K. Al Nesef, Chairman                  (non executive member).
2.  Fahad G. Al Abdul Jaleel, Vice Chairman      (Independent member). 
3.  Abdullah F. Al Thaqeb, Board Member         (non-executive member). 
4.  Faisal A. Al Nassar, Board Member     (Independent member). 
5.  Ahmad H. Al Nafisi, Board member                   (non-executive member).

The substitute member Mr.Ahmad H. Al Nafisi was called on April 2, 2014 to join the Board 
membership after the resignation of Mr. Hamad S. Al Humidi from his position as former 
Deputy Chairman.

All directors undertook not to hold a position of a board member in more than 5 Kuwait 
based shareholding companies at the same time or in a similar or competing company, or 
the position of a chairman for more than one Kuwait based shareholding company. 

GIH 2014 Corporate Governance Report
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The independent Board member votes on all resolutions issued by the Board by passing, and 
a Board meeting shall not be held unless with the presence of one of the independent Board 
members.

Mr. Yasser A. Juma’a, one of the executive managers, occupies the position of the board 
secretary by virtue of the resolution issued by the board on July 31, 2013, in order to record, 
coordinate and maintain the board meetings minutes, and ensure that all procedures 
endorsed by the board are properly followed by the members and all information are duly 
conveyed among the members and stakeholders.

The board of directors held six meetings during 2014 by invitation issued by the Chairman and 
all the members were present in all the meetings.

The Company held an extraordinary general assembly on July 6, 2014 to amend its 
memorandum of association and articles of association in terms of the procedures of board 
meeting attendance. 

(2) Defining Duties & Responsibilities

The board of directors issued in its meeting held on December 17, 2014 the amendments 
with regards to the organizational structure so that the (updated) organizational structure 
will reflect the clear segregation of powers and authorities between the board members and 
the executive management. 

The board of directors is committed to fulfill its duties and responsibilities as per the corporate 
governance requirements. In this context, the board implemented the following: approved the 
company’s strategy for the coming years, issued the estimated budget for the year 2015, 
approved the interim financial and annual statements, supervised the capital expenditure, 
ownership and disposal of assets, ensured that the company is complying with the policies 
and procedures and established the competent committees therefrom. The board has also 
ensured efficiency and adequacy of the internal regulatory systems in force in the company 
related to the financial and accounting systems as well as the risk measurement and 
management systems, and it is in process of updating the board’s agreement to include all 
the CMA requirements.

A new mechanism is being developed by the company to enable the board of directors to gain 
information and data in a timely and accurate manner by developing IT infrastructure relating 
to system generated reporting to ensure that all reports are generated at the highest level 
of quality and accuracy and submitted to the board of directors on a timely basis for decision 
making. 

The Company’s Chairman, Board and Executive Members are committed to fulfill their duties 
and responsibilities as per the corporate governance requirements. The Company is currently 
preparing and updating the job descriptions of all positions to incorporate the same in its 
organizational structure.
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(3) Selection of Qualified Personnel for Board Members and
      Executive Management 

The Board issued in its meeting no. (1-1/2013) held on July 31, 2013 the establishment of the 
following board committees: 

Nomination Committee  

The preliminary role of the Nomination Committee is to select competent persons for the 
Board of Directors and Executive Management as well as to provide its recommendation to 
the Board with regards to all suggested nominations.

It comprises of three members including two independent members, as follows:

• Mr. Fahad G. Al Abdul Jaleel   Head of Committee (Independent Member).
• Mr. Abdullah F. Al Thaqeb   Board Member.
• Mr. Faisal A. Al Nassar    Board Member (Independent Member).

The Nomination Committee held four meetings in 2014 where it studied nomination 
applications for the relevant positions with due registration as a preliminary phase to submit 
it to the Board then to CMA. It also provided its recommendation to the Board by nominating 
the company’s representatives in the boards of the companies invested therein.

As proposed by the board of directors, the general assembly intends to issue rules for selecting 
members of nomination committee, duration of membership and approach. 

Compensation & Remuneration Committee

The preliminary role of Compensation & Remuneration Committee is to follow up and develop 
policies, ranges of remuneration and organized by-laws for granting the compensation and 
remuneration related to the board of directors, executive management and staff. 

The company shall update the remuneration policy for the board members and chief executive 
officers as a preliminary phase to submit it to the Compensation & Remuneration Committee 
in order to study the same and issue its recommendations thereon to the Board of Directors. 

The Compensation & Remuneration Committee comprises of three members including two 
independent, as follows:

• Mr. Abdullah F. Al Thaqeb – Head of Committee
• Mr. Fahad G. Al Abdul Jaleel – Board Member (Independent Member)
• Mr. Faisal A. Al Nassar – Board Member (Independent Member) 

The Compensation & Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2014.
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(4) Integrity of Financial Reporting

Audit Committee 

The preliminary role of the Audit Committee is to supervise all audits issues and ensure 
authenticity and integrity of financial reports and internal control systems. 

The Audit Committee is a fully independent committee that comprises three members 
including one independent member. There are no conflicts between the recommendations of 
the Audit Committee and the resolutions of the board. The Audit Committee shall perform the 
following: review all periodic financial statements prior to submitting the same to the Board, 
provide its recommendations to the Board with regards to appointing external auditors, study 
the notes made on the financial by-laws, provide recommendations related to appointing the 
internal audit manager, review and decide on the internal audit plans, review the results of 
internal reports and ensure all necessary reform procedures are taken; and it has already 
reviewed the results of inspection made by the Central Bank of Kuwait to the company.   

Members of the Audit Committee are: 
 •  Mr. Faisal A. Al Nassar   Head of Committee (Independent Member) 
 •  Mr. Abdullah F. Al Thaqeb  Board Member 
 •  Mr. Ahmad H. Al Nafisi    Board Member

The committee held six meetings in 2014. 

Company’s External Auditors

The general assembly held on June 19, 2014 approved the reappointment of Al Aiban, Al Osaimi 
& Partners (Ernst & Young) and Burgan Office - International Accountants (Ali Al Hasawi & 
Partners) as the company’s external auditors for the year 2014. The external auditors are 
registered with Capital Markets Authority and independent of the company’s business and 
board of directors and they do not carry out any additional engagements beyond the scope of 
their audits. The external auditors are invited to the general meetings to present their audit 
report to the shareholders. They may also discuss their opinions and views with the Audit 
Committee before presenting the annual financial statements to the board of directors for 
deciding thereon. 

Acting Chief Executive Officer and Financial Controller acknowledge, in writing, to the 
Company’s Board of Directors, that the periodic financial reports are duly and fairly presented, 
include all the financial aspects of the Company and have been prepared in accordance with 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). In addition, the Company’s Board 
of Directors submits an undertaking for integrity and accuracy of the financial accounts 
provided to the external auditors with the Annual Directors’ Report to the shareholders for 
the year 2014. 
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(5) Setting Sound Risk Management & Internal Control Systems

 Risk Management Committee

The preliminary role of the Risk Management Committee is to supervise all Risk Management 
related matters and to contribute in setting all policies and by-laws related to risk management 
in conformity with the company’s approach of risk management.

It comprises of 3 members including one independent member, as follows: 

 •   Mr. Abdullah F. Al Thaqeb   Head of Committee 
 •   Mr. Fahad G. Al Abdul Jaleel  Board Member (Independent Member) 
 •   Mr. Ahmad H. Al Nafisi    Board Member 
 
The committee held four meetings in 2014. 

The company established an independent risk management department staffed with qualified 
and experienced officers to measure and follow up all the risks the company faces during its 
compliance with the systems and procedures in force, and provide periodic reports to the 
Risk & Compliance Committee (an internal management committee) that, in turn, submits 
its reports to the Risk Management Committee (issued from the Board).

Review of Internal Control Systems

The board of directors approved a recommendation by the Internal Audit Committee to 
appoint an independent internal auditor (KPMG) reporting directly to the Audit Committee 
to regularly (quarterly) generate review reports and evaluate the internal control systems 
enforced in the company. 

The Audit Committee shall submit a recommendation to the board of directors to appoint 
another (Independent) firm to prepare an annual Internal Control Report as per the future 
guidelines issued by the Capital Markets Authority in this regard. 

The Company strives to apply the principles of dual internal control review represented in the 
following:

 • Segregation of duties. 
 • Inspection and dual control. 
 • Dual signatures

In order to ensure financial soundness, accuracy and efficiency of the company’s operations, 
in all aspects,
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Governance Committee

The preliminary role of the Governance Committee is to follow up the performance of the board 
members and executive management, to set a framework and guidelines for governance and 
supervise its implementation as well as amend the same whenever necessary.

It comprises of three members including one independent member and is chaired by the 
Company’s chairman. The members of Corporate Governance Committee are:

 •   Mr. Talal K. Al Nesef   Head of Committee
 •   Mr. Faisal A. Al Nassar    Board Member (Independent Member)
 •   Mr. Ahmad H. Al Nafisi    Board Member 

The committee held three meetings in 2014 in which it perused all quarterly forms of the 
corporate governance issued to the CMA, presented the annual governance report for the 
year 2013 and decided to incorporate the same in the company’s annual report.

The company is preparing the governance guidelines and practices in conformity with the 
CMA requirements and which will be approved by the Board during the year 2015.  

(6) Promoting Good Conduct & Ethics 

The Board of Directors defines the criteria and norms that formulate the good conduct and 
ethics in line with the requirements of the official authorities and CMA Resolution No. 25 with 
respect to the issuance of the rules of corporate governance. The executive management 
strives to realize the Company’s objectives in the light of such norms and requirements and 
include the same in the charter to be approved by the Board in 2015. 

Besides, the Company shall review and update its Conflict of Interest Policy and the 
mechanism for handling and resolving the related issues in line with the requirements of the 
official authorities and CMA Resolution aforementioned and approve the same by the board 
of directors. 

(7) Accurate and Timely Disclosure & Transparency 

The Board of Directors shall establish disclosure and transparency systems and policies 
to involve methods and mechanisms for disclosure of the financial and non‐financial 
information and data in a timely manner to third parties and stakeholders without any 
preference, in addition to information and data to be disclosed by members of the board of 
directors and executive management and provided to the Company to prepare the register 
required by CMA. 

The Company complies with CMA instructions promulgated on June 5, 2012 with respect to 
disclosure of the material information. 
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In 2014, GIH disclosed material data and information on a regular and timely basis to all 
shareholders and investors via appropriate disclosure channels including the year end and 
interim financial reports, major sales of assets, names of the Board of Directors, executive 
management and Shari’a Supervisory Board, name of the external auditor, etc... And the 
company has provided all information to be disclosed - as per the rules of governance- on its 
website. 

The Company has an independent unit responsible for organizing the Investors matters, 
providing all data, information and reports necessary for the Investors through the generally 
recognized disclosure channels.

A corporate governance section was developed on the company’s portal to help the 
shareholders and investors evaluate the company’s performance.

(8) Preservation of Shareholders’ Equity

The Ministry of Commerce & Industry issued the Commercial Companies Law (revised) and 
its Executive Regulations in 2013. In addition, the Capital Markets Authority issued Rules of 
Corporate Governance. Accordingly, GIH intends to prepare, revise and update its internal by-
laws, procedures and controls to ensure that the shareholders exercise their rights fairly in 
compliance with the by-laws, resolutions and instructions in force and issued in this regard.

GIH is listed in Kuwait Stock Exchange and, therefore, Kuwait Clearing Company maintains 
the shareholders records, while GIH has the right to access and request any information 
relating to shareholders. 

In 2014, the Company invited its shareholders for the ordinary and extraordinary general 
assembly meetings through an advertisement published twice in the daily newspapers 
specifying the agenda items as well as the place and time of the meetings. The Company 
encourages its shareholder to actively and effectively participate in the general assembly 
meetings and discuss the agenda items. The shareholders have the right to vote, in principal 
or by proxy, on the general assembly resolutions. Moreover, all information relating to the 
voting rights of the shareholders and potential investors shall be provided permanently and 
continuously.

(9) Recognition of Stakeholders’ Role

GIH is in process to prepare and update systems and policies that ensure preservation of 
the Stakeholders’ rights and include the related rules and instructions such as Labor Law, 
Commercial Companies Law and its Executive Regulations, Capital Markets Authority 
instructions, etc... Moreover, due attention is paid to the contracts executed between the 
parties and any additional covenants signed by the Company towards the stakeholders. 
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(10) Performance Enhancement

To reinforce and enhance the performance, GIH intends to: 

a. Develop a mechanism to ensure that members of the board and executive management
    are continuously provided with sessions and training programs. 

b. Devise a system and mechanism to evaluate the performance of the board and executive 
   management and contribution by each member on a regular (annual) basis, based on the 
    objective key performance indicators.

c. Develop integrated internal reporting system to assist the board of directors and
    executive management in taking sound and thorough decisions and, eventually, realizing
    the shareholders’ interests. 
    

(11) Social Responsibility 

GIH intends to apply a policy to ensure that its objectives are in harmony with the ones that 
the society is seeking to realize. The said policy aims to assist in developing the living, social 
and economic circumstances in the society. GIH also intends to formulate a program and 
mechanism to highlight the Company’s social work and approve the same by the Board 
during 2014. 

III. Central Bank of Kuwait Inspection Report 

During 2014, the Central Bank of Kuwait “CBK” issued its inspection report for the Company’s 
activities as per its financial position on September 30, 2013. CBK report did not include any 
observations or violations and concluded that GIH complies with the relevant applicable laws, 
resolutions and regulations. 
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IV. Internal Management Committees 

GIH established internal management committees that assist the executive management 
to monitor and steer the operating units. Such committees comprise of the members of the 
Company’s executive management and staff having various experiences. These committees 
meet on a regular basis to review and monitor the Company’s activities and provide the 
necessary recommendations, as tabulated below: 

Committee Number of 
members Responsibilities

Investment  
Committee

5 members Review the investment policies and supervise 

implementation thereof, and submit proposals 

and recommendations to CEO after study and 

evaluation of the following:

1. Performance of investments, quarterly. 

2. Investment concentration, semiannually. 

3. New investment projects, whenever 

    proposed.

Credit 
Committee

4 members Review the credit policy and supervise 
implementation thereof, in addition to the 
following: 

1. Define the nature of credit facilities extended
    to clients. 
2. Review and execute the credit applications. 
3. Fix the amounts extended to clients along 
    with the profit rates and collaterals. 
4. Initiate the legal proceedings against the 
    delinquent clients.

Recruitment 
Committee

3 members Specify the company’s needs for workforce, 
review the resumes of candidates and 
interview candidates for the vacant posts.
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Provisions 
Committee

4 members Review and evaluate the outstanding credit 

facilities for each client to identify any unusual 

situation relating to the client and any potential 

consequences that may lead to classifying the 

facilities extended to such client as “irregular”, 

even if conditions of irregularity are not met 

in some facilities and, eventually, assess the 

amount of provisions against such debt.

Risk Management 
& Compliance 
Committee

4 members Review risk strategy, identify and assess 
the risks the Company is exposed to, and 
review the measures of such risks (e.g. risks 
related to investments and concentration 
thereof, liquidity, financing, foreign 
currencies, operating, etc…), and submit 
regular (quarterly) reports to the Board Risk 
Committee.

Asset & Liability 
Management 
Committee

5 members Develop proper balance sheet structure, 
monitor and evaluate asset and liability 
management in terms of performance, risk 
consideration and diversity, and identify the 
internal and external events that may affect 
the Company’s financial position.

V. General Assembly
A: The Company held its general assembly on June 19, 2014 to approve the financial position 
and financial statements for the year 2013.

B: The extraordinary general assembly meeting was held on July 6, 2014 and decided the 
following:

• Decrease the capital of the company from KD 44,219,114 (forty four million two hundred 
nineteen thousand and one hundred and fourteen Kuwaiti Dinars only) representing 
442,191,140 shares (four hundred forty two million one hundred ninety one thousand and one 
hundred and forty shares) to KD 16,420,244 (sixteen million four hundred and twenty thousand 
two hundred and forty four Kuwaiti Dinars only) representing 164,202,440 (one hundred sixty 
four million two hundred and two thousand four hundred and forty shares).

• Approve the amendments proposed to the memorandum of association and articles 
of association of GIH as per the provisions of the Companies Law No. 25 of 2012 and its 
Executive Regulations (a copy of the amendments made to the memorandum of association 
and articles of associations is available on the company’s website). 
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Associate Companies

Majan Development Co.

Inovest Co.

Afkar Holding Co.

Arkan Al-Kuwait Real Estate Co.

Country : Sultanate of Oman

Incorporation : March 2008

Capital  : OMR. 16.1 million

Sector  : Real Estate

Country : Kingdom of Bahrain

Incorporation : June 2002

Capital  : USD 114.6 million

Sector  : Investment

Country : State of Kuwait

Incorporation : April 2006

Capital  : KD. 15.5 million

Sector  : Industrial & Services

Country : State of Kuwait

Incorporation : August 2003

Capital  : KD. 23.9 million

Sector  : Real Estate
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Amar Finance and Leasing Co.

Mada’in Properties Co. Durrat Marina Investment Ltd. 
Co- sponsor

Gulf Real Estate Co.

Country : State of Kuwait

Incorporation : February 2004

Capital  : KD. 20 million

Sector  : Real Estate Finance and  
   Investment

Country : United Arab Emirates

Incorporation : May 2006

Capital  : AED 223 million

Sector  : Real Estate

Country                             :    Kingdom of Bahrain

Launched                          :     2007       

Capital                               :      BHD 41.2 million

Capital 
(underwritten by GIH)   :      BHD 10 million

Sector                                 :     Real Estate - 
          Residential & Commercial

Country : Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Incorporation : August 2004

Capital  : SAR 522.3 million

Sector  : Real Estate

Investment Fund
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

INCOME    
Management fees  281,130   - 
Realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

 
 86,911 571,183 

Unrealised (loss) gain on financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss 

 
7 (188,435) 14,525 

Realised (loss) gain on sale of financial assets available for sale  (98,168) 13,278 
Share of results of associates 9 1,191,277 669,381 
Dividend income  26,193 18,571 
Change in fair value of investment properties 10 (431,457) (221,740) 
Realised gain on sale of investment properties  - 274,437 
Rental income from investment properties  - 97,005 
Other income  448,864 48,773 
  ────────── ────────── 

TOTAL INCOME 1,316,315 1,485,413 
  ────────── ────────── 

EXPENSES    
Administrative expenses  (295,775) (312,165) 
Staff cost  (482,047) (598,851) 
Foreign exchange gain   9,871 7,652 
Provision for credit losses and impairment, net 4 (360,541) (443,965) 
Murabaha charges, net  (1,671,486) (1,643,384) 
Investment expenses  (186,337) (266,740) 
  ────────── ────────── 

TOTAL EXPENSES  (2,986,315) (3,257,453) 
  ────────── ────────── 

LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
  ════════ ════════ 
Attributable to:    
Equity holders of the Parent Company  (1,628,918) (1,758,596) 
Non-controlling interests  (41,082) (13,444) 
  ────────── ────────── 
  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
  ════════ ════════ 
    
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of  
  the Parent Company 5 (10.42) fils    (11.24) fils    
  ════════ ════════ 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
The attached notes 1 to 24form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME 
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
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TOTAL INCOME 1,316,315 1,485,413 
  ────────── ────────── 

EXPENSES    
Administrative expenses  (295,775) (312,165) 
Staff cost  (482,047) (598,851) 
Foreign exchange gain   9,871 7,652 
Provision for credit losses and impairment, net 4 (360,541) (443,965) 
Murabaha charges, net  (1,671,486) (1,643,384) 
Investment expenses  (186,337) (266,740) 
  ────────── ────────── 

TOTAL EXPENSES  (2,986,315) (3,257,453) 
  ────────── ────────── 

LOSS FOR THE YEAR  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
  ════════ ════════ 
Attributable to:    
Equity holders of the Parent Company  (1,628,918) (1,758,596) 
Non-controlling interests  (41,082) (13,444) 
  ────────── ────────── 
  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
  ════════ ════════ 
    
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of  
  the Parent Company 5 (10.42) fils    (11.24) fils    
  ════════ ════════ 
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

    
Loss for the year  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
   ─────────  ───────── 

    
Other comprehensive loss:    
Other comprehensive (loss) income to be reclassified to consolidated 
statement of income in  subsequent periods: 

   

Change in fair value of financial assets available for sale  (641,710) (811,080) 
Transfer to consolidated statement of income on sale of financial 
  assets available for sale 

  
98,168 

 
(13,278) 

Transfer to consolidated statement of income on impairment 
  of financial assets available for sale 

 
8 

 
360,541 

 
601,979 

Share of other comprehensive income of associates  9 (298,786) 581,280 
Foreign currency translation adjustments  218,862 (422,803) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

Other comprehensive loss  (262,925) (63,902) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,932,925) (1,835,942) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 

Attributable to:    

Equity holders of the Parent Company  (1,906,043) (1,781,933) 
Non-controlling interests  (26,882) (54,009) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

  (1,932,925) (1,835,942) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

    
ASSETS    
Bank balances and short-term deposits 6 3,353,938 5,581,657 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 777,625 2,881,315 
Financial assets available for sale 8 6,938,158 11,007,532 
Investment in associates 9 34,898,754 34,050,726 
Investment properties 10 4,847,672 3,262,912 
Other assets 14 573,466 1,912,838 
Furniture and equipment  156 3,827 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL ASSETS  51,389,769 58,700,807 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity    
Share capital 11 16,420,244 44,219,114 
Share options reserve 11 -     737,322 
Statutory reserve 11 2,041,720 6,907,296 
Cumulative changes in fair values 11 (149,468) 332,319 
Foreign currency translation reserve 11 (146,770) (351,432)
Treasury shares 11 (2,982,298) (7,847,874)
Treasury shares reserve  940,578 940,578 
Accumulated losses 11 (1,628,918) (28,049,762)
  ───────── ───────── 
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 14,495,088 16,887,561 
Non-controlling interests 231,854 258,736 
  ───────── ───────── 
Total equity 14,726,942 17,146,297 
  ───────── ───────── 
    
Liabilities    
Murabaha payables 12 35,632,310 40,465,645 
Other liabilities 13 1,030,517 1,088,865 
  ───────── ───────── 
Total liabilities  36,662,827 41,554,510 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  51,389,769 58,700,807 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________  
Talal Khaled Al-Nesef  Bashar N. Al-Tuwaijri 
(Chairman)  (Acting Chief Executive Officer)  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
The attached notes 1 to 24form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements



31

 

4 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

    
Loss for the year  (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
   ─────────  ───────── 

    
Other comprehensive loss:    
Other comprehensive (loss) income to be reclassified to consolidated 
statement of income in  subsequent periods: 

   

Change in fair value of financial assets available for sale  (641,710) (811,080) 
Transfer to consolidated statement of income on sale of financial 
  assets available for sale 

  
98,168 

 
(13,278) 

Transfer to consolidated statement of income on impairment 
  of financial assets available for sale 

 
8 

 
360,541 

 
601,979 

Share of other comprehensive income of associates  9 (298,786) 581,280 
Foreign currency translation adjustments  218,862 (422,803) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

Other comprehensive loss  (262,925) (63,902) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

Total comprehensive loss for the year  (1,932,925) (1,835,942) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 

Attributable to:    

Equity holders of the Parent Company  (1,906,043) (1,781,933) 
Non-controlling interests  (26,882) (54,009) 
   ──────────  ────────── 

  (1,932,925) (1,835,942) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

    
ASSETS    
Bank balances and short-term deposits 6 3,353,938 5,581,657 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 777,625 2,881,315 
Financial assets available for sale 8 6,938,158 11,007,532 
Investment in associates 9 34,898,754 34,050,726 
Investment properties 10 4,847,672 3,262,912 
Other assets 14 573,466 1,912,838 
Furniture and equipment  156 3,827 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL ASSETS  51,389,769 58,700,807 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity    
Share capital 11 16,420,244 44,219,114 
Share options reserve 11 -     737,322 
Statutory reserve 11 2,041,720 6,907,296 
Cumulative changes in fair values 11 (149,468) 332,319 
Foreign currency translation reserve 11 (146,770) (351,432)
Treasury shares 11 (2,982,298) (7,847,874)
Treasury shares reserve  940,578 940,578 
Accumulated losses 11 (1,628,918) (28,049,762)
  ───────── ───────── 
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 14,495,088 16,887,561 
Non-controlling interests 231,854 258,736 
  ───────── ───────── 
Total equity 14,726,942 17,146,297 
  ───────── ───────── 
    
Liabilities    
Murabaha payables 12 35,632,310 40,465,645 
Other liabilities 13 1,030,517 1,088,865 
  ───────── ───────── 
Total liabilities  36,662,827 41,554,510 
  ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  51,389,769 58,700,807 
  ═════════ ═════════ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________  
Talal Khaled Al-Nesef  Bashar N. Al-Tuwaijri 
(Chairman)  (Acting Chief Executive Officer)  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
The attached notes 1 to 24form part of these consolidated financial statements. 

The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements



32

The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

 

6 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS  
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
 

2014 2013 
Notes KD KD

OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Loss for the year   (1,670,000) (1,772,040) 
Non-cash adjustment to reconcile loss for the year to net cash flows: 
  Depreciation  3,671 14,322 
  Realised loss (gain) loss on sale of financial assets available for sale  98,168 (13,278)  
  Share of results of associates  9 (1,191,277) (669,381)
  Dividend income  (26,193) (18,571)
  Change in fair value of investment properties 10 431,457 221,740 
  Realised gain on sale of investment properties  -     (274,437)
  Rental income from investment properties  -     (97,005)
  Impairment and provision for credit losses, net 4 360,541 443,965
  Net murabaha charges  1,671,486 1,643,384
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:    
  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    1,125,919 (61,480)
 Wakala receivables  -     1,450,433 
  Other assets  843,818 155,722 
  Other liabilities  30,287 (1,751,045)
 ───────── ─────────
Net cash from (used in) operating activities  1,677,877 (727,671)
 ───────── ─────────
INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Capital redemption of financial assets available for sale  88,453 129,388 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets available for sale  1,550,979 13,278 
Rental income received  -     97,005 
Capital redemption from investment in an associate  426,905 -     
Dividends received from associates 9 595,329 433,157 
Dividend received from others  26,193 3,571 
Proceeds from redemption / sale of investment properties  -     1,502,400 
 ───────── ─────────
Net cash from investing activities 2,687,859 2,178,799 
 ───────── ─────────
FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Dividends paid  (88,634) (17,959) 
Net movement in murabaha payables  (5,660,000) (3,005,327) 
Murabaha charges paid  (844,821) (1,032,538) 
Net movement in restricted bank accounts  88,634 17,959 
 ───────── ─────────
Net cash used in financing activities  (6,504,821) (4,037,865) 
  ───────── ─────────
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (2,139,085) (2,586,737) 
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January   5,299,110 7,885,847 
 ───────── ─────────
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 6 3,160,025 5,299,110 
  ═════════ ═════════
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
For the year ended 31 December 2014 
 

Attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company 
 

Share
capital   

Share
options 
reserve 

Statutory 
reserve 

Cumulative 
changes in 
fair values 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

Treasury 
shares 

Treasury 
shares 
reserve 

Accumulated 
losses Sub-total 

Non-
controlling 

interests 
Total  
equity

 KD   KD KD KD KD KD KD KD  KD  KD  KD 
         

As at 1 January 2014 44,219,114 737,322 6,907,296 332,319 (351,432) (7,847,874) 940,578 (28,049,762) 16,887,561 258,736 17,146,297 
Loss for the year -        -        -         -         -        -        -       (1,628,918) (1,628,918) (41,082) (1,670,000) 
Other comprehensive (loss) income -        -        -         (481,787) 204,662 -        -      -        (277,125) 14,200 (262,925) 
 ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── 
Total comprehensive (loss) income for the  year -        -        -         (481,787) 204,662 -        -      (1,628,918) (1,906,043) (26,882) (1,932,925) 

 Cancellation of share options (Note 11) -        -        -         -        -        -         -        (486,430)      (486,430) -              (486,430) 
Write-off of accumulated losses against share 
  capital,  share option reserve, and cancellation of 
  treasury shares (Note 11 f)  

 
 

(27,798,870)

 
 

(737,322)

 
 

(4,865,576)
 

-        

 
 

-        

 
 

4,865,576 

 
 

-        

 
 

28,536,192 

 
 

       -

 
 

  -       

 
 

  -       
 ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── 
As at 31 December 2014 16,420,244 -        2,041,720 (149,468) (146,770) (2,982,298) 940,578 (1,628,918) 14,495,088 231,854 14,726,942 
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 

 
As at 1 January 2013  44,219,114 737,322 6,907,296 (26,582)  30,806 (7,847,874) 940,578 (26,291,166)  18,669,494 312,745 18,982,239 
Loss for the year -        -        -         -         -        -        -       (1,758,596) (1,758,596) (13,444) (1,772,040) 
Other comprehensiveincome (loss) -        -        -         358,901 (382,238) -        -      -        (23,337) (40,565) (63,902) 
 ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── 
Total comprehensive income  (loss) for the  year -       -      -     358,901 (382,238) -        -        (1,758,596) (1,781,933) (54,009) (1,835,942) 
 ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── ─────── 
As at 31 December 2013 44,219,114 737,322 6,907,296 332,319 (351,432) (7,847,874) 940,578 (28,049,762) 16,887,561 258,736 17,146,297 
 ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ ═══════ 
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Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

8 

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
The consolidated financial statements of Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) and subsidiaries 
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the 
Board of Directors on 12 March 2015. The shareholders’ Annual General Assembly has the power to amend these 
consolidated financial statements after issuance. The Parent Company’s registered head office is at Dar Al-Awadi 
Tower, Sharq, Kuwait City, P.O. Box 28808, 13149 Safat, Kuwait.  
 
Major shareholder of the Parent Company is Kuwait Finance House K.S.C (“major shareholder”) which is listed on 
the Kuwait Stock Exchange. 
 
The Parent Company is a closed shareholding company registered and incorporated in Kuwait on 8 September 1998 
under the Commercial Companies Law No. 15 of 1960 and amendments thereto. The Parent Company is registered 
with the Central Bank of Kuwait (“CBK”) and Capital Markets Authority (“CMA”) as an investment company. 
Details of subsidiary companies are set out in Note 3. 
 
The Group is primarily engaged in investment activities and related financial and advisory services.  All activities of 
the Group are carried out in compliance with the Noble Islamic Sharee’a, as approved by the Parent Company’s 
Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory Board.   
 
The Parent Company’s Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory Board consist of three eminent Islamic scholars who review 
the Parent Company’s compliance with general Sharee’a principles and specific Fatwas, rulings and guidelines 
issued. Their review includes examination of evidence relating to the documentation and procedures adopted by the 
Parent Company to ensure that its activities are conducted in accordance with Islamic Sharee’a principles. 
 
Under the guidance of its Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory Board, the Parent Company does not recognise any 
income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-Islamic income is distributed to charity.  
 
2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment 
properties, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and certain financial assets available for sale which 
have been measured at fair value. 
 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”) which is the functional and 
presentational currency of the Parent Company. 
 
Statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the regulations of the 
State of Kuwait for financial services institutions regulated by CBK. These regulations require adoption of all 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) except for the IAS 39 requirement for collective provision, 
which has been replaced by the CBK’s requirement for a minimum general provision as described under the 
accounting policy for impairment of financial assets. 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with 
those used in the previous year except for the adoption of the following amended IASB Standards during the 
year: 
 
Investment Entities (Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27) 
These amendments provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an 
investment entity under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and must be applied retrospectively, subject to 
certain transition relief. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair 
value through profit or loss. These amendments have no impact on the Group, since none of the entities in the Group 
qualifies to be an investment entity under IFRS 10. 
 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities - Amendments to IAS 32 
These amendments clarify the meaning of ’currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off’ and the criteria for 
non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of clearing houses to qualify for offsetting and is applied retrospectively. 
These amendments have no impact on the Group, since none of the entities in the Group has any offsetting 
arrangements. 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

9 

 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) 
IAS 36: Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendment) 
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of IFRS 13 on the disclosures required under IAS 36. In 
addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs for which 
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the period. These amendments are effective 
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application permitted, 
provided IFRS 13 is also applied. Though these amendments have not resulted in any additional disclosures 
currently, the same would continue to be considered for future disclosures. 

IFRIC 21 Levies 
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified 
by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation 
clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective 
application is required for IFRIC 21. This interpretation has no impact on the Group as it has applied the recognition 
principles under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with the requirements 
of IFRIC 21 in prior years. 
 
2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 
 

The standards and interpretations those are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they 
become effective. 
 
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
The IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments in its final form in July 2014 and is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with a permission to early adopt. IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for 
recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non- financial 
assets. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The adoption of this 
standard will have an effect on the classification and measurement of Group's financial assets but is not expected 
to have a significant impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group is in the 
process of quantifying the impact of this standard on the Group's consolidated financial statements, when 
adopted. 
 
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with customers 
IFRS 15 was issued by IASB on 28 May 2014 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts and IAS 18 Revenue along with related IFRIC 13,  IFRIC 15, 
IFRIC 18 and SIC 31 from the effective date. This new standard would remove inconsistencies and weaknesses in 
previous revenue requirements, provide a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues and improve 
comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions and capital markets.  The 
Group is in the process of evaluating the effect of IFRS 15 on the Group and do not expect any significant impact 
on adoption of this standard. 

Annual improvements 
Annual improvements for 2010 – 2012 and 2011 -2013 cycle which are effective from 1 July 2014 are not 
expected to have a material  impact on the Group. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued) 
IAS 36: Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendment) 
These amendments remove the unintended consequences of IFRS 13 on the disclosures required under IAS 36. In 
addition, these amendments require disclosure of the recoverable amounts for the assets or CGUs for which 
impairment loss has been recognised or reversed during the period. These amendments are effective 
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application permitted, 
provided IFRS 13 is also applied. Though these amendments have not resulted in any additional disclosures 
currently, the same would continue to be considered for future disclosures. 

IFRIC 21 Levies 
IFRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognises a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment, as identified 
by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation 
clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum threshold is reached. Retrospective 
application is required for IFRIC 21. This interpretation has no impact on the Group as it has applied the recognition 
principles under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets consistent with the requirements 
of IFRIC 21 in prior years. 
 
2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective 
 

The standards and interpretations those are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they 
become effective. 
 
IFRS 9: Financial Instruments 
The IASB issued IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments in its final form in July 2014 and is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with a permission to early adopt. IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for 
recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non- financial 
assets. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The adoption of this 
standard will have an effect on the classification and measurement of Group's financial assets but is not expected 
to have a significant impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities. The Group is in the 
process of quantifying the impact of this standard on the Group's consolidated financial statements, when 
adopted. 
 
IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with customers 
IFRS 15 was issued by IASB on 28 May 2014 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. 
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts and IAS 18 Revenue along with related IFRIC 13,  IFRIC 15, 
IFRIC 18 and SIC 31 from the effective date. This new standard would remove inconsistencies and weaknesses in 
previous revenue requirements, provide a more robust framework for addressing revenue issues and improve 
comparability of revenue recognition practices across entities, industries, jurisdictions and capital markets.  The 
Group is in the process of evaluating the effect of IFRS 15 on the Group and do not expect any significant impact 
on adoption of this standard. 

Annual improvements 
Annual improvements for 2010 – 2012 and 2011 -2013 cycle which are effective from 1 July 2014 are not 
expected to have a material  impact on the Group. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation 
 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries (investees which are controlled by the Parent Company) including special purpose entities as at 31 
December 2014. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 
 
• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 

the investee) 
• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 
 
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary. 
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.  
 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises, the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, 
non-controlling interest and other component of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.  
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
Revenue recognition 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received. The 
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised: 
 
Wakala income 
Wakala income is recognised on a time proportion basis so as to yield a constant periodic rate of return based on the 
net balance outstanding. 
 
Placement, arrangement and management fees 
Placement, arrangement and management fees are recognised when earned upon performance of services envisaged 
under the service agreements. 
 
Dividend income 
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.   
 
Rental income 
Rental income is recognised when earned, on a time apportionment basis. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 
The Group classifies its financial assets as “Bank balances and short term deposits”, “financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss”, “financial assets available for sale”, “wakala receivables” and certain “other assets”whereas 
the financial liabilities are classified as “murabaha payables” and “other liabilities”. 
 
The Grouprecognises financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. A ‘regular way’ purchase of financial assets is recognised using the trade date 
accounting. Regular way purchases are purchases of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time 
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial liabilities are not recognised 
unless one of the parties has performed or the contract is a derivative contract. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value (transaction price) plus, in case of a 
financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
Financial assets 
Financial assets include the following items: 
 
• Bank balances and short term deposits 

Bank balances and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash at 
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. 
 
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances 
and short term deposits net of balances in restricted bank accounts. 

 
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for trading and financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as 
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or losses on financial 
assets held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Financial assets are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss if they are managed and their performance is evaluated on reliable fair 
value basis in accordance with documented investment strategy. Profit earned is accrued in profit income, 
while dividend income is recorded in ‘Dividend income’ when the right to the payment has been established. 

 
After initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are re-measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.4 Basis of consolidation 
 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its 
subsidiaries (investees which are controlled by the Parent Company) including special purpose entities as at 31 
December 2014. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. 
Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 
 
• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of 

the investee) 
• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and 
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 
 
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
 
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights 
 
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated 
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the 
subsidiary. 
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having 
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction.  
 
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises, the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, 
non-controlling interest and other component of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.  
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
  

2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued) 
• Financial assets available for sale 

Financial assets available for sale are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available for 
sale or are not classified as financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity 
investments or loans and receivables. 
 
After initial recognition financial assets available for sale are measured at fair value with gains and losses 
being recognised through OCI until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is determined to be 
impaired at which time the cumulative gain and loss previously reported in other comprehensive income is 
included in the consolidated statement of income. Financial assets whose fair value cannot be reliably 
measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. 

 
• Wakala receivables 

Wakala receivables are financial assets originated by the Group. These are stated at amortised cost including 
provision for impairment, if any. 
 
Wakala is an agreement whereby the Group provides a sum of money to a customer under an agency 
arrangement, who invests it according to specific conditions in return for a fee.  The agent is obliged to return the 
amount in case of default, negligence or violation of any terms and conditions of the wakala. 
 
Wakala receivables comprise amounts invested with financial institutions for the onward deals by these 
institutions in various Islamic investment products. 
 

• Other assets 
Other assets are stated at cost, less impairment if any. 

 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities include the following items: 
 
• Murabaha payables 

Murabaha payables represent the amount payable on a deferred settlement basis for assets purchased under 
murabaha agreements. Murabaha payables are stated at gross amount of payable, net of deferred profit payable. 
Profit payable is expensed on a time apportionment basis taking account of the profit rate attributable and the 
balance outstanding. 

 
• Other liabilities 

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in future for goods or services received, whether billed by 
the supplier or not. 
 

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities  

Financial assets  
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of an entity of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when:  
 
• the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;  
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full 

without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or  
• the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either:  

(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or  
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 

control of the asset. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the 
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. 
 
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained. Continuing involvement 
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount 
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
 
Financial liabilities  
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.  
 
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or 
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a 
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 

Impairment of financial assets 
An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine, in case of financial asset, whether there is objective 
evidence that a specific financial asset may be impaired and, in case of other assets, whether there is an indication 
that a specific asset may be impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets are impaired if, and only if, 
there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset 
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. If such evidence or indication exists, any impairment 
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in profit or principal payments, the probability that they 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults.  If such evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Impairment is determined as follows: 
 
a) for assets at fair value, impairment is the difference between cost and fair value, less any impairment loss 

previously recognised in the consolidated statement of income. 
b) for assets at cost, impairment is the difference between carrying value and the present value of future cash 

flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset; 
c) for assets at amortised cost, impairment is the difference between carrying amount and the present value of 

future cash flows discounted at the original effective profit rate. 
 
In addition, in accordance with CBK instructions, a minimum general provision of 1% on all finance facilities net 
of certain categories of collateral, to which Central Bank of Kuwait instructions are applicable and not subject to 
specific provision, is made. 
 
For non-equity financial assets the carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance 
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. If, in a subsequent year, 
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the 
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. For available for sale equity financial assets, the asset is written down and subsequent 
increases are reflected in consolidated statement of comprehensive income.   
 
In addition, a provision is made to cover impairment for specific groups of assets where there is a measurable 
decrease in estimated future cash flows. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued) 
 
Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
Reversal of impairment losses is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for 
the asset no longer exists or has decreased. The reversal of impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income except for available for sale equity financial assets which are recognised in the consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income. 
 
Financial assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 
 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of 
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the financial assets and settle the financial liabilities 
simultaneously. 
 
Investment in associates 
The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An associate is 
an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. 
 
Under the equity method, investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter for the 
post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of net assets of the investee. Goodwill relating to the associate is 
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment. 
The Group recognises in the consolidated statement of income its share of the total recognised profit or loss of the 
associate from the date that influence or ownership effectively commenced until the date that it effectively ceases. 
Distributions received from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the 
carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the Group’s share in the associate arising from changes in 
the associate’s equity that have not been recognised in the associate’s income statement. The Group’s share of 
those changes is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
 
An assessment of investment in an associate is performed when there is an indication that the asset has been 
impaired, or that impairment losses recognised in prior years no longer exist. Whenever impairment requirements 
of IAS 39, indicate that investment in an associate may be impaired, the entire carrying amount of investment is 
tested by comparing its recoverable amount with its carrying value.  
 
Unrealised gains on transactions with an associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s share in the 
associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment in the 
asset transferred.  
 
The reporting dates of the associates and the Group are identical and in case of different reporting date of an 
associate, which are not more than three months, from that of the Group, adjustments are made for the effects of 
significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements. The associates’ accounting policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and 
events in similar circumstances. 
 
Investment properties  
Investment properties comprise completed properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. 
Investment properties are initially recorded at cost being the fair value of the consideration given and including 
acquisition charges associated with the investment property. After initial recognition, the properties are re-
measured to fair value on an individual basis with any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value being 
included in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which it arises. 
 
Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or 
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the consolidated statement of 
income in the period of retirement or disposal. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  
 
Investment properties (continued) 
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at 
the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for 
such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change 
in use. 
 
Treasury shares 
Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and 
not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method.  Under this method, 
the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in the equity.  When the treasury 
shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in shareholders’ equity, “treasury shares reserve”, 
which is not distributable.  Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance 
on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and statutory 
reserve. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded 
losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve account.  No cash dividends are 
paid on these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and 
reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.  Part of the reserves created 
or appropriated and retained earnings equivalent to the cost of treasury shares is not available for distribution 
throughout the holding period. 
 
Foreign currencies 
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of 
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded 
at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange prevailing at 
reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income.   
 
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.  
 
Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of foreign operations are translated at the Parent 
Company’s presentation currency (KD) at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Operating results of 
such operations are translated at average rates of exchange for the foreign operation’s period of operations. The 
resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a separate section of equity (foreign currency translation 
reserve) until the disposal of the foreign operation. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative 
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income.  
 
Fiduciary assets 
Assets held in trust or fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets or liabilities of the Group and accordingly are not 
included in these consolidated financial statements. 
 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed as part of notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote. 
 
  

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements



41

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

15 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  
 
Investment properties (continued) 
Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from 
investment property to owner-occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at 
the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for 
such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of change 
in use. 
 
Treasury shares 
Treasury shares consist of the Parent Company’s own issued shares that have been reacquired by the Group and 
not yet reissued or cancelled. The treasury shares are accounted for using the cost method.  Under this method, 
the weighted average cost of the shares reacquired is charged to a contra account in the equity.  When the treasury 
shares are reissued, gains are credited to a separate account in shareholders’ equity, “treasury shares reserve”, 
which is not distributable.  Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance 
on that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the voluntary reserve and statutory 
reserve. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded 
losses in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve account.  No cash dividends are 
paid on these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and 
reduces the average cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.  Part of the reserves created 
or appropriated and retained earnings equivalent to the cost of treasury shares is not available for distribution 
throughout the holding period. 
 
Foreign currencies 
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of 
each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded 
at the functional currency rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange prevailing at 
reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income.   
 
Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.  
 
Assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of foreign operations are translated at the Parent 
Company’s presentation currency (KD) at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Operating results of 
such operations are translated at average rates of exchange for the foreign operation’s period of operations. The 
resulting exchange differences are accumulated in a separate section of equity (foreign currency translation 
reserve) until the disposal of the foreign operation. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative 
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income.  
 
Fiduciary assets 
Assets held in trust or fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets or liabilities of the Group and accordingly are not 
included in these consolidated financial statements. 
 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed as part of notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits is remote. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  
 
Fair values 
The Group measures financial instruments, such as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial 
assets available for sale, and non-financial assets such as investment properties at each reporting date.  
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. 
 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement as a whole: 
 
• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 
 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group 
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based 
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period. 
 
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the 
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past 
event and the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured. 
 
Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS) 
The Group calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based on the 
Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from associates and subsidiaries, Board 
of Directors’ remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when 
determining the contribution. No contribution to KFAS has been provided as the Group has incurred a loss for the 
current year. 
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  
 
National Labour Support Tax (NLST) 
The Group calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions 
No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the period. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash 
dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit for the year. 
No NLST has been provided as the Group has incurred a loss for the current year. 
 
Zakat 
Zakat is calculated at 2.577% on the opening reserves and retained earnings of the Group which have remained 
for one complete fiscal year and is paid under the direction of the Group’s Al-Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory 
Board. Zakat is charged to voluntary reserve. 
 
In addition to Zakat required by Islamic Sharee’a as mentioned above, contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% 
of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58 of 2007. The 
Zakat charge calculated in accordance with these requirements is charged to the consolidated statement of 
income. No Zakat has been provided as the Group has incurred a loss for the current year. 
 
2.6 Significant accounting judgments, estimations and assumptions 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.  
 
The Group has used judgments and estimates principally in, but not limited to the classification of investments, 
the determination of impairment provisions, valuation of unquoted investments and valuation of investment 
properties. 
 
Classification of financial assets and liabilities 
Management decides on acquisition of financial assets whether they should be classified as financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss or available for sale investments. The Group classifies financial assets 
as carried at fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of short term profit 
making. 
 
Classification of investments as fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitor the 
performance of these investments. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily available fair 
values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management accounts, they are 
classified as fair value through profit or loss. All other investments are classified as available for sale. 
 
Classification of real estate  
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading or investment 
property. The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary 
course of business. The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental 
income or for capital appreciation, or for undetermined future use. 
 
Impairment of investments 
The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.  The determination 
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, the Group evaluates other 
factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount 
factors for unquoted equities.   
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.5 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)  
 
National Labour Support Tax (NLST) 
The Group calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance Resolutions 
No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the period. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash 
dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit for the year. 
No NLST has been provided as the Group has incurred a loss for the current year. 
 
Zakat 
Zakat is calculated at 2.577% on the opening reserves and retained earnings of the Group which have remained 
for one complete fiscal year and is paid under the direction of the Group’s Al-Fatwa and Sharee’a Supervisory 
Board. Zakat is charged to voluntary reserve. 
 
In addition to Zakat required by Islamic Sharee’a as mentioned above, contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% 
of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance resolution No. 58 of 2007. The 
Zakat charge calculated in accordance with these requirements is charged to the consolidated statement of 
income. No Zakat has been provided as the Group has incurred a loss for the current year. 
 
2.6 Significant accounting judgments, estimations and assumptions 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting 
Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. However, uncertainty 
about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.  
 
The Group has used judgments and estimates principally in, but not limited to the classification of investments, 
the determination of impairment provisions, valuation of unquoted investments and valuation of investment 
properties. 
 
Classification of financial assets and liabilities 
Management decides on acquisition of financial assets whether they should be classified as financial assets 
carried at fair value through profit or loss or available for sale investments. The Group classifies financial assets 
as carried at fair value through profit or loss if they are acquired primarily for the purpose of short term profit 
making. 
 
Classification of investments as fair value through profit or loss depends on how management monitor the 
performance of these investments. When they are not classified as held for trading but have readily available fair 
values and the changes in fair values are reported as part of profit or loss in the management accounts, they are 
classified as fair value through profit or loss. All other investments are classified as available for sale. 
 
Classification of real estate  
Management decides on acquisition of a real estate whether it should be classified as trading or investment 
property. The Group classifies property as trading property if it is acquired principally for sale in the ordinary 
course of business. The Group classifies property as investment property if it is acquired to generate rental 
income or for capital appreciation, or for undetermined future use. 
 
Impairment of investments 
The Group treats available for sale equity investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.  The determination 
of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires considerable judgment. In addition, the Group evaluates other 
factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted equities and the future cash flows and the discount 
factors for unquoted equities.   
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.6 Significant accounting judgments, estimations and assumptions (continued) 

Impairment of other assets 
An estimate of the collectible amount of other assets is made when collection of the full amount is no longer 
probable.  For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis.  Amounts 
which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied 
according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates. 

Valuation of investment properties 
The Group estimates the fair value of investment properties using two independent third party valuations who 
make considerable judgment and assumptions to reflect the market conditions at the reporting date. 
 
Valuation of unquoted investments 
Valuation of unquoted equity securities is normally based on one of the following: 
 

• Recent arm’s length market transactions; 
• Current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
• Earnings multiples; 
• The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk 

characteristics; 
• Underlying net asset base of the investment; or 
• Other valuation models 

 
The determination of the cash flows, earnings multiples and discount factors for unquoted equity securities 
requires significant estimation.   
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
An asset is impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of 
an asset is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  Net selling price is the amount obtainable 
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash 
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An 
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence 
that an asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income.  
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
2.6 Significant accounting judgments, estimations and assumptions (continued) 

Impairment of other assets 
An estimate of the collectible amount of other assets is made when collection of the full amount is no longer 
probable.  For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis.  Amounts 
which are not individually significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied 
according to the length of time past due, based on historical recovery rates. 

Valuation of investment properties 
The Group estimates the fair value of investment properties using two independent third party valuations who 
make considerable judgment and assumptions to reflect the market conditions at the reporting date. 
 
Valuation of unquoted investments 
Valuation of unquoted equity securities is normally based on one of the following: 
 

• Recent arm’s length market transactions; 
• Current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same; 
• Earnings multiples; 
• The expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items with similar terms and risk 

characteristics; 
• Underlying net asset base of the investment; or 
• Other valuation models 

 
The determination of the cash flows, earnings multiples and discount factors for unquoted equity securities 
requires significant estimation.   
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
An asset is impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of 
an asset is the higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.  Net selling price is the amount obtainable 
from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash 
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An 
assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence 
that an asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated 
statement of income.  
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3 GROUP INFORMATION 
 
The subsidiaries of the Group are as follows: 
 

Name of company 
Country of 

incorporation 
Ownership interest as at  

31 December
Principal 
 activities

       2014        2013 

Bait Al-Amar Al-Khaleeji General 
 Trading and Contracting Company 
 W.L.L. 

 
 

Kuwait 

 
 

99% 

 
 

 99% 

 
 
Real Estate 

 
Extended Hotel Equity Co. 

 
Cayman Island 

 
100% 

 
100% 

Undertaking Islamic 
investments 

 
Commercial Equity Co. 

 
Cayman Island 

 
100% 

 
100% 

Undertaking Islamic 
investments 

 
India Diversified Co. 

 
Cayman Island 

 
90% 

 
90% 

Undertaking Islamic 
investments 

 
Gateway Acquisition, LLC* (“GA”) 

 
U.S.A. 

 
100% 

 
- 

Undertaking Islamic 
investments 

 
*During the previous years, the Parent Company, through a portfolio investment arrangement with its Investment 
Advisory Company (SPV), GIH Asset Management Advisory Company (GIHAM), had provided a murabaha 
financing facility to Gateway Condominiums Inc. (GCI) through a revolving murabaha agreement between GIHAM 
and GCI. The Murabaha financing was secured against real estate properties in GA and was classified as financial 
assets available for sale. On 1 December 2014, GIHAM entered into an agreement with GCI whereby GCI 
transferred its 100% ownership interest in GA, a Florida based limited liability company, on settlement of its 
murabaha payable to GIHAM. No gain or loss was recorded in the consolidated financial statements on settlement 
as the carrying value of investment properties and cash and cash equivalents acquired was equivalent to the amount 
of Murabaha. 
 
Material partly owned subsidiary: 
India Diversified Co. is the only material subsidiary with non-controlling interests.  
 

   2014   2013 
    KD    KD 
 
Accumulated balance of non-controlling interests 231,854 258,736 
    ══════════    ══════════

Loss attributable to non-controlling interests (41,082) (13,444) 
    ══════════    ══════════

 
Summarised financial information of India Diversified Co. is provided below: 
        2014        2013 
       KD       KD 
Statement of income 
Income        (410,820) (130,270) 
Expenses       - (4,174) 
 ────────── ──────────

Loss for the year (410,820) (134,444) 
    ══════════ ══════════

Total comprehensive loss  (410,820) (138,618) 
    ══════════ ══════════

Statement of financial position   
Total assets 2,525,761 2,848,819 
Total liabilities   (207,221) (261,459) 
 ────────── ──────────

Total equity 2,318,540 2,587,360 
 ══════════ ══════════

   

Cash flows used in operating activities (59,630) (42,957) 
 ────────── ──────────

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (59,630) (42,957) 
 ══════════ ══════════
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4 PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENT, NET 
 
   2014   2013 
    KD    KD 
   
Reversal of credit losses - 158,423 
Impairment of financial assets available for sale (Note 8) (360,541) (601,979) 
Impairment of other assets - (409) 
 ────────── ────────── 
 (360,541) (443,965) 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
 
5 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 
 
Basic and diluted loss per share is computed by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of 
the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares of the Parent Company, less treasury shares, 
outstanding during the year. 
 
The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations: 
 
 

    2014    2013 
    KD    KD 
 
Loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company (1,628,919) (1,758,596) 
 ────────── ────────── 

   Shares Shares 
Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted loss per share  
   (excluding treasury shares) 156,398,254 156,398,254 
 ────────── ────────── 

        Fils     Fils 
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of the 

Parent Company 
 

(10.42) (11.24) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 
 
The prior year comparative information has been restated for the effect of reduction of share capital (Note 11). 
 
6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following amounts:  
 

2014      2013
KD  KD

   
Bank balances and short-term deposits 3,353,938 5,581,657 
Less: balances in restricted bank accounts (193,913) (282,547) 

───────── ─────────
 3,160,025 5,299,110 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
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4 PROVISION FOR CREDIT LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENT, NET 
 
   2014   2013 
    KD    KD 
   
Reversal of credit losses - 158,423 
Impairment of financial assets available for sale (Note 8) (360,541) (601,979) 
Impairment of other assets - (409) 
 ────────── ────────── 
 (360,541) (443,965) 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 
 
5 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 
 
Basic and diluted loss per share is computed by dividing the loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of 
the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares of the Parent Company, less treasury shares, 
outstanding during the year. 
 
The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted loss per share computations: 
 
 

    2014    2013 
    KD    KD 
 
Loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Parent Company (1,628,919) (1,758,596) 
 ────────── ────────── 

   Shares Shares 
Weighted average number of shares for basic and diluted loss per share  
   (excluding treasury shares) 156,398,254 156,398,254 
 ────────── ────────── 

        Fils     Fils 
Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of the 

Parent Company 
 

(10.42) (11.24) 
  ══════════ ══════════ 
 
The prior year comparative information has been restated for the effect of reduction of share capital (Note 11). 
 
6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and cash equivalents included in the consolidated statement of cash flows include the following amounts:  
 

2014      2013
KD  KD

   
Bank balances and short-term deposits 3,353,938 5,581,657 
Less: balances in restricted bank accounts (193,913) (282,547) 

───────── ─────────
 3,160,025 5,299,110 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
 
 
  

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

21 

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

2014 2013 
KD KD

Held for Trading: 
Quoted securities -      474,000 

Designated at fair value through profit or loss:   
Quoted securities 393,938 557,425 
Unquoted securities 306,049 1,367,963 
Unquoted funds managed by external fund managers 77,638 481,927 

───────── ─────────
 777,625 2,881,315 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
 
Fair values of unquoted securities are determined using valuation techniques that are not based on observable market 
prices or rates for which a net unrealised loss of KD123,168(2013: unrealised gain of KD 275,753) was recognised 
during the year. 
 
Certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are pledged as collateral against murabaha payables to a 
bank (note 12).  
 
Unrealised (loss) gain is analysed as follows: 

 
8 FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE  

Certain unquoted equity securities and unquoted managed funds amounting to KD1,400,332(2013: 
KD 4,038,912) are carried at cost, less impairment, due to the unpredictable nature of their future cash flows and 
lack of other suitable methods for arriving at a reliable fair value of these investments. There is no active market 
for these financial assets and the Group intends to hold them for the long term. Management has performed a 
review of its unquoted equity securities and unquoted managed funds to assess whether impairment has occurred 
in the value of these investments and recorded an impairment loss of KD 360,541(2013: KD 601,979) in the 
consolidated statement of income. Management is of the view that no further impairment provision is required as 
at 31 December 2014 in respect of these investments. 
 
Certain financial assets available for sale are pledged as collateral against murabaha payables to a related party 
bank (note 12).  
 
  

 2014 2013 
KD KD

Held for trading:   
- Quoted securities -      75,518 
   
Designated at fair value through profit or loss:   
- Quoted securities (42,766) 181,212 
- Unquoted securities (123,168) (275,753) 
- Unquoted funds managed by external fund managers (22,501) 33,548 
 ───────── ─────────
 (188,435) 14,525 
 ═════════ ═════════ 

 
2014 2013 

 KD KD
   
Unquoted equity securities 5,359,269 6,230,595 
Unquoted funds managed by external fund managers 1,578,889 4,644,462 
Unquoted funds managed by the Parent Company -     132,475 
 ───────── ─────────

 6,938,158 11,007,532 
 ══════════ ══════════
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9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 
 
Summarised financial information of associates is as follows: 

Innovest 
KD

Arkan 
KD

Amar 
KD

Afkar 
KD

GREC
KD

Mada’in 
KD

Navimar 
KD

Majan 
KD

Total 
KD  

2014:  
Share of statement of financial position  
Current assets 272,754130,6241,150,706862,476642,887358,566608,6981,134,8935,161,604 
Non-current assets 10,633,907 8,873,1872,317,0615,865,6704,933,7834,490,128702,0981,743,01339,558,847 
Current liabilities (2,825,197)(2,085,128)(415,283)(505,808)(19,193)(542,973)(38,867)(56,661)(6,489,110) 
Non-current liabilities (1,497,928)(97,839)-      (82,573)(120,350)(2,373,706)-      (288,323)(4,460,719) 
 ─────────────────────────── ─────────────────────────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

Net assets 6,583,5366,820,8443,052,4846,139,7655,437,1271,932,0151,271,9292,532,92233,770,622 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Share of revenue and results  
Revenue 379,4801,249,250147,252633,311112,0579,994(71,156)25,8382,486,026 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Profit (loss) 66,389851,254271,727170,785(3,552)(8,851)(154,342)(2,133)1,191,277 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
    
 

2013:  
Share of statement of financial position  
Current assets 3,229,849334,065781,147453,6041,757,151347,2191,135,000998,7139,036,748 
Non-current assets 8,805,755 9,399,0952,728,1575,508,7485,658,6024,203,858687,0371,524,27538,515,527 
Current liabilities (4,098,892)(3,433,445)(124,432)(67,160)(393,076)(524,276)(24,679)(67,953)(8,733,913) 
Non-current liabilities (1,511,367)(73,090)(422,834)(413,857)(1,449,878)(2,148,976)-      (1,839)(6,021,841) 
 ─────────────────────────── ─────────────────────────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

Net assets 6,425,3456,226,6252,962,0385,481,3355,572,7991,877,8251,797,3582,453,19632,796,521 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Share of revenue and results  
Revenue 284,688959,018100,921125,020661,1875,329(29,410)68,5332,175,286 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

(Loss) profit (267,853)549,989(8,295)32,735378,920(34,501)(47,017)65,403669,381 
 ═══════════════════════════ ═══════════════════════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 
Shares of certain associates are pledged against murabaha payable obtained from a related party bank (note 12). 
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9 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 
 
Summarised financial information of associates is as follows: 

Innovest 
KD

Arkan 
KD

Amar 
KD

Afkar 
KD

GREC
KD

Mada’in 
KD

Navimar 
KD

Majan 
KD

Total 
KD

 

2014:  
Share of statement of financial position  
Current assets 272,754 130,624 1,150,706 862,476 642,887 358,566 608,698 1,134,893 5,161,604 
Non-current assets 10,633,907 8,873,187 2,317,061 5,865,670 4,933,783 4,490,128 702,098 1,743,013 39,558,847 
Current liabilities (2,825,197) (2,085,128) (415,283) (505,808) (19,193) (542,973) (38,867) (56,661) (6,489,110) 
Non-current liabilities (1,497,928) (97,839) -      (82,573) (120,350) (2,373,706) -      (288,323) (4,460,719) 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

Net assets 6,583,536 6,820,844 3,052,484 6,139,765 5,437,127 1,932,015 1,271,929 2,532,922 33,770,622 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Share of revenue and results  
Revenue 379,480 1,249,250 147,252 633,311 112,057 9,994 (71,156) 25,838 2,486,026 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Profit (loss) 66,389 851,254 271,727 170,785 (3,552) (8,851) (154,342) (2,133) 1,191,277 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
    
 

2013:  
Share of statement of financial position  
Current assets 3,229,849 334,065 781,147 453,604 1,757,151 347,219 1,135,000 998,713 9,036,748 
Non-current assets 8,805,755 9,399,095 2,728,157 5,508,748 5,658,602 4,203,858 687,037 1,524,275 38,515,527 
Current liabilities (4,098,892) (3,433,445) (124,432) (67,160) (393,076) (524,276) (24,679) (67,953) (8,733,913) 
Non-current liabilities (1,511,367) (73,090) (422,834) (413,857) (1,449,878) (2,148,976) -      (1,839) (6,021,841) 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

Net assets 6,425,345 6,226,625 2,962,038 5,481,335 5,572,799 1,877,825 1,797,358 2,453,196 32,796,521 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

Share of revenue and results  
Revenue 284,688 959,018 100,921 125,020 661,187 5,329 (29,410) 68,533 2,175,286 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

(Loss) profit (267,853) 549,989 (8,295) 32,735 378,920 (34,501) (47,017) 65,403 669,381 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 
Shares of certain associates are pledged against murabaha payable obtained from a related party bank (note 12). 
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES  

2014 2013 
KD    KD    

  
As at 1 January  3,262,912 6,443,555 
Arising on acquisition of GA (Note 3) 1,797,355 -     
Disposals -     (1,951,353)
Redemption  -     (584,748)
Change in fair value           (431,457)           (221,740) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 218,862 (422,802)

────── ──────As at 31 December 4,847,672 3,262,912 
 ══════ ══════ 
  
Investment properties comprise of commercial and retail properties. 
 
The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2014 was determined by independent valuers who 
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The 
fair values were determined based on market approach. In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest 
and the best use of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to the valuation techniques during 
the year. The fair value of investment properties is measured under the Level 2 fair value hierarchy. 
 
 
11 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 
 
a)  Share capital 
Authorised, issued and paid-up capital consists of 164,202,438shares (2013: 442,191,140 shares) of 100 fils per 
share (2013: 100 fils per share). These shares have been fully paid up in cash. 
 
b) Statutory reserve 
As required by the Companies Law, as amended, and the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the 
profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat, and Directors’ remuneration, is required to be 
transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the 
reserve equals 50% of the paid-up share capital. No transfer has been made to statutory reserve since losses have 
been incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014. 
 
Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid-up 
share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of that amount. 
 
c) Treasury shares  

2014 2013
   
Number of treasury shares 7,805,275 20,536,596
Percentage of issued shares 4.75%  4.64% 
Cost  (KD) 2,982,298 7,847,874
Market value (KD) 421,426 985,689
 

Statutory reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution throughout 
the holding period of treasury shares. The Group did not purchase any treasury shares during the year.  
 
The weighted average market price of the Parent Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 
65.8 fils per share. 
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10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES  

2014 2013 
KD    KD    

  
As at 1 January  3,262,912 6,443,555 
Arising on acquisition of GA (Note 3) 1,797,355 -     
Disposals -     (1,951,353)
Redemption  -     (584,748)
Change in fair value           (431,457)           (221,740) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 218,862 (422,802)

────── ──────As at 31 December 4,847,672 3,262,912 
 ══════ ══════ 
  
Investment properties comprise of commercial and retail properties. 
 
The fair value of investment properties as at 31 December 2014 was determined by independent valuers who 
have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties in the relevant locations. The 
fair values were determined based on market approach. In estimating the fair values of the properties, the highest 
and the best use of the properties is their current use. There has been no change to the valuation techniques during 
the year. The fair value of investment properties is measured under the Level 2 fair value hierarchy. 
 
 
11 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 
 
a)  Share capital 
Authorised, issued and paid-up capital consists of 164,202,438shares (2013: 442,191,140 shares) of 100 fils per 
share (2013: 100 fils per share). These shares have been fully paid up in cash. 
 
b) Statutory reserve 
As required by the Companies Law, as amended, and the Parent Company's Articles of Association, 10% of the 
profit for the year before contribution to KFAS, NLST, Zakat, and Directors’ remuneration, is required to be 
transferred to statutory reserve. The Parent Company may resolve to discontinue such annual transfers when the 
reserve equals 50% of the paid-up share capital. No transfer has been made to statutory reserve since losses have 
been incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014. 
 
Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid-up 
share capital in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of that amount. 
 
c) Treasury shares  

2014 2013
   
Number of treasury shares 7,805,275 20,536,596
Percentage of issued shares 4.75%  4.64% 
Cost  (KD) 2,982,298 7,847,874
Market value (KD) 421,426 985,689
 

Statutory reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution throughout 
the holding period of treasury shares. The Group did not purchase any treasury shares during the year.  
 
The weighted average market price of the Parent Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2014 was 
65.8 fils per share. 
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12 MURABAHA PAYABLES (continued) 
 
The average effective profit rate attributable to murabaha payables is 4.69%(2013: 4.06%) per annum.Murabaha 
payables are secured by certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note7), financial assets available 
for sale (note 8) and shares in associates (note 9). 
 
13 OTHER LIABILITIES 

2014    2013
KD  KD

   
Dividend payable 193,913 282,547 
Employees’ end of service benefits 200,237 171,750 
Other payables and accrued expenses 636,367 634,568 

───────── ─────────
 1,030,517 1,088,865 
 ═════════ ═════════ 

 
14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
These represent transactions with certain parties (associates, major shareholder, directors and executive officers of 
the Group) and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The Group’s 
management approves pricing policies and terms of these transactions. Significant transactions with Group’s related 
parties included are as follows: 
 
Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: 
 

Major
shareholder 

Other related 
parties 

Total   
2014 

Total   
2013 

           KD           KD  KD          KD
 

Bank balances  73,821 - 73,821 2,486,286 
Due from a related party  -  -      -     1,225,790 
Murabaha payables  35,632,310 - 35,632,310 40,465,645 
 
 

* Due from a related party is included in other assets.  
 
Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of income are as follows: 
 

Major
shareholder 

Other
 related 
parties 

     Total   
     2014 

Total   
2013 

          KD           KD           KD          KD
      
Wakala income  -     - -       4,295 
Murabaha charges  1,671,486 - 1,671,486 1,643,384 
Realised gain on sale of investment     
  properties 

 
-     

 
- 

 
-       

 
274,437 

Administrative expenses  -     30,000 30,000 30,000 
 
Related party balances have arisen as a result of transactions made in the ordinary course of the business and do not 
carry any profit. 
           2014           2013 
    KD         KD  
Key management compensation:   
Salaries and other short term benefits 111,300 102,092 
Terminal benefits 31,890 14,280 
 ───────── ─────────
 143,190 116,372 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
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12 MURABAHA PAYABLES (continued) 
 
The average effective profit rate attributable to murabaha payables is 4.69%(2013: 4.06%) per annum.Murabaha 
payables are secured by certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note7), financial assets available 
for sale (note 8) and shares in associates (note 9). 
 
13 OTHER LIABILITIES 

2014    2013
KD  KD

   
Dividend payable 193,913 282,547 
Employees’ end of service benefits 200,237 171,750 
Other payables and accrued expenses 636,367 634,568 

───────── ─────────
 1,030,517 1,088,865 
 ═════════ ═════════ 

 
14 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
These represent transactions with certain parties (associates, major shareholder, directors and executive officers of 
the Group) and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. The Group’s 
management approves pricing policies and terms of these transactions. Significant transactions with Group’s related 
parties included are as follows: 
 
Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: 
 

Major
shareholder 

Other related 
parties 

Total   
2014 

Total   
2013 

           KD           KD  KD          KD
 

Bank balances  73,821 - 73,821 2,486,286 
Due from a related party  -  -      -     1,225,790 
Murabaha payables  35,632,310 - 35,632,310 40,465,645 
 
 

* Due from a related party is included in other assets.  
 
Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of income are as follows: 
 

Major
shareholder 

Other
 related 
parties 

     Total   
     2014 

Total   
2013 

          KD           KD           KD          KD
      
Wakala income  -     - -       4,295 
Murabaha charges  1,671,486 - 1,671,486 1,643,384 
Realised gain on sale of investment     
  properties 

 
-     

 
- 

 
-       

 
274,437 

Administrative expenses  -     30,000 30,000 30,000 
 
Related party balances have arisen as a result of transactions made in the ordinary course of the business and do not 
carry any profit. 
           2014           2013 
    KD         KD  
Key management compensation:   
Salaries and other short term benefits 111,300 102,092 
Terminal benefits 31,890 14,280 
 ───────── ─────────
 143,190 116,372 
 ═════════ ═════════ 
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15 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION  
 
For management purposes, the Group is organised into three main business segments based on internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker: 
 
Islamic financing  :  Providing a range of Islamic products to corporate customers;  
 
Investment : Managing direct investments and investments in subsidiaries and associates; and 
 
Real estate : Managing trading and investment properties 
 
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments. 
 
Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions 
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating 
profit or loss and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. 
 

 Islamic       
financing Investment Real estate Unallocated Total 

 KD KD KD KD KD
      
2014      
      
Segment income  -      1,298,909 (431,457) 448,863 1,316,315 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment result -      (919,454) (431,457) (319,089) (1,670,000)
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment assets -      46,541,942 4,847,671 156 51,389,769 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment liabilities -      35,632,310 -      1,030,517 36,662,827 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
     
Other disclosures     
Investment in associates -      34,898,754 -      -      34,898,754 
Share of results of associates -      1,191,277 -      -      1,191,277 
Impairment on financial assets 
  available for sale 

 
-      

 
(360,541) 

 
-      

 
-      

 
(360,541) 

 
 Islamic       

financing Investment Real estate Unallocated Total 
 KD KD KD KD KD
      
2013      
      
Segment income 4,295 1,286,937 149,702 44,479 1,485,413 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment result 162,718 (1,225,575) 149,702 (858,885) (1,772,040)
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment assets -  55,434,066 3,262,912 3,829 58,700,807 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
Segment liabilities -  40,465,645 -  1,088,865 41,554,510 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════
     
Other disclosures     
Investment in associates -      34,050,726 -      -      34,050,726 
Share of results of associates -      669,381 -      -      669,381 
Reversal of credit losses 
Impairment on financial assets 
  available for sale 

158,423 
 

-      

-    
 

(601,979)   

             -      
 

             -      

             -      
 

             -      

158,423 
 

(601,979)   
 

  

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements



54

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

28 

 
15 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)  
 
Geographic information 

2014     2013
KD  KD

Total income from external sources  
Kuwait 

 
1,325,348 

 
1,396,490 

Gulf and rest of Middle East (182,189) 297,385 
International 173,156 (208,462)

───────── ─────────
 1,316,315 1,485,413
 ═════════ ═════════

The income information above is based on the location of the customer.  
2014     2013
KD  KD

Non-current assets 
Kuwait 

 
17,760,973 

 
16,242,464 

Gulf and rest of Middle East 22,906,043 24,070,903 
International 6,017,724 8,011,630 

────────── ──────────
 46,684,740 48,324,997 
 ══════════ ══════════ 
 

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of financial assets available for sale, investment properties, investment 
in associates and furniture and equipment. 
 
16 RISK MANAGEMENT  
  
Risk is an inherent part of the Group’s business activities. It is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
assessment, measurement and monitoring of the business activities, subject to risk limits and other controls. This 
process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is 
accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity 
risk, investment risk and market risk. Market risk is subdivided into profit rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity 
price risk. The Group is also subject to operating risks. The independent risk control process does not include 
business risks such as changes in the environment technology and industry. They are monitored and managed 
through the Group’s Strategic Risk Management Framework. 
 
Risk management structure 
The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the overall risk management process and for approving the risk 
strategies and principles. 
 
Board of directors 
The Board of Directors provides risk oversight and has the overall responsibility for determining the strategic 
direction of the organisation and for creating the environment and the framework for risk management to operate 
effectively. 
 
Asset liability committee 
The Asset Liability Committee (the “ALCO”) has been established to assist the members of Board of Directors in 
fulfilling their responsibilities with regard to asset and liability management and liquidity adequacy. Its objectives 
are to: 
 

• Propose asset and liability management policies that are compatible with the Group’s risk philosophy and 
risk preferences; 

• Determine the strategy for the Group in terms of mix of assets and liabilities given its expectations of future 
events; 

• Regularly monitor and assess the financing cost risk to earnings and capital under different financing cost 
environments;  

• Manage liquidity to ensure obligations are met on an ongoing basis; 
• Support the maintenance of the Group’s desired risk preferences and statement of financial position profile;  
• Create and build a group-wide resource base for asset and liability management. 
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16 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)   
 
Investment committee 
The Investment Committee is responsible of reviewing and recommending strategies, policies and limits for the 
management of investment risk and market risk.  
 
For the investment risk, the committee reviews and recommends limits, or changes to established limits, related to 
investment activity, monitoring of exposures against limits and approval of excess above those limits. 
 
For the market risk, the committee reviews and recommends limits, or changes to established limits, related to 
investment activity in terms of equity trading. 
 
Credit committee 
The Credit Committee is responsible for credit risk management. The committee ensures adequate risk capital 
against credit exposures, identifies external factors that may have an impact on equity and determines appropriate 
strategies. 
 
Audit committee 
The risk management responsibility for the Audit Committee is mainly towards Operational Risk. The committee 
identifies and presents operational risks in the course of regular internal audits with recommendations for corrective 
actions. It also focuses the internal audit work on significant risks and auditing the risk management processes 
across the Group. 
 
 
17 CREDIT RISK 
 
Credit Risk is the risk that the Group will incur a loss because its customers, clients or counterparties failed to 
discharge their contractual obligations. The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount 
of risk it is willing to accept for individual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by 
monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. 
 
The Group has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the 
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular collateral revisions. Counterparty limits are established by the 
use of a credit risk classification system, which assigns each counterparty a risk rating. Risk ratings are subject to 
regular revision. The credit quality review process allows the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the 
risks to which it is exposed and take corrective action. 
 
Gross maximum exposure to credit risk 
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of 
financial position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of 
master netting and collateral agreements (if any). 

 

Gross     
maximum 
exposure 

2014     
KD      

Gross     
maximum 
exposure 

2013      
KD      

    
Bank balances and short-term deposits  3,353,938 5,581,657 
Other assets  573,466 1,912,838 
  ──────── ──────── 
Total credit risk exposure  3,927,404 7,494,495 
  ════════ ════════ 
Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value the amounts shown above represent the current credit risk 
exposure but not the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values.   
 
Collateral 
The Group did not hold any collateral as at 31 December 2014 and 2013. 
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18 LIQUIDITY RISK (continued) 
 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual 
undiscounted repayment obligations: 
 

 
 
Financial liabilities  

Within
3 months 

KD

6 to 12 
months 

KD

1 to 2 
years 
KD

Over 2
years 
KD

Total 
KD

2014      
Murabaha payables 3,453,086 3,496,836 6,884,937 25,785,474 39,620,333 
Other liabilities 746,571             -     283,946             -     1,030,517 

 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ─────────
Total financial liabilities 4,199,657 3,496,836 7,168,883 25,785,474 40,650,850 

 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
 

 
 
Financial liabilities  

Within 
3 months 

KD

6 to 12 
months 

KD

1 to 2 
years 
KD

Over 2
years 
KD

Total 
KD

2013      
Murabaha payables 3,448,276 3,513,346 6,949,922 32,670,411 46,581,955 
Other liabilities 832,713             -     256,152             -     1,088,865

 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
Total financial liabilities 4,280,989 3,513,346 7,206,074 32,670,411 47,670,820 

 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
 
  
19 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES  
 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The maturities of assets and 
liabilities have been determined according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. The maturity 
profile for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets available for sale, investment 
properties and investment in associates is based on management's estimate of liquidation of those financial assets. 
 
The maturity profile of assets and liabilities is as follows: 
 

   Within  6 to 12  1 to 2   Undated/ 
 3 months months years Over 2 years   Total 

2014 KD  KD  KD  KD  KD 
      
ASSETS      
Bank balances and short-term deposits 3,353,938             -                 -                 -      3,353,938 
Financial assets at fair value through 
  profit or loss             -     777,625             -                 -      777,625 
Financial assets available for sale             -                 -     6,938,158             -      6,938,158 
Investment in associates              -                 -                 -     34,898,754 34,898,754 
Investment properties             -                 -     4,847,672             -      4,847,672 
Other assets 545,506             -                 -     27,960 573,466 
Furniture and equipment 156             -                 -                 -      156 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ─────────
TOTAL ASSETS 3,899,600 777,625 11,785,830 34,926,714 51,389,769 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═══════ 
LIABILITIES      
Murabaha payables 2,830,000 2,830,000 5,660,000 24,312,310 35,632,310 
Other liabilities 746,571             -      283,946             -      1,030,517 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ─────────

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,576,571 2,830,000 5,943,946 24,312,310 36,662,827 
═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 
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19 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

   Within  6 to 12  1 to 2   Undated/ 
 3 months months years Over 2 years   Total 

2013 KD  KD  KD  KD  KD 
      
ASSETS      
Bank balances and short-term deposits 5,581,657             -                 -                 -     5,581,657 
Financial assets at fair value through 
  profit or loss             -     2,881,315             -                 -     2,881,315 
Financial assets available for sale             -                 -     11,007,532             -     11,007,532 
Investment in associates              -                 -                 -     34,050,726 34,050,726 
Investment properties             -                 -     3,262,912             -     3,262,912 
Other assets 1,884,878             -                 -     27,960 1,912,838 
Furniture and equipment             -     3,827             -                 -     3,827 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL ASSETS 7,466,535 2,885,142 14,270,444 34,078,686 58,700,807 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═══════ 
LIABILITIES      
Murabaha payables  2,830,000 2,830,000 5,660,000  29,145,645 40,465,645 
Other liabilities 832,713             -     256,152             -     1,088,865 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,662,713 2,830,000 5,916,152 29,145,645  41,554,510 
═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 
 
20 MARKET RISK  
 
Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as 
profit rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market. 
 
Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, 
diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal 
of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value.  
 
20.1 Profit rate risk 
 
Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or the fair 
values of the financial instruments. The Group is not exposed to profit rate risk on its profit bearing assets and 
liabilities (short-term deposits and murabaha payables) as a result of reasonably possible changes in profit rates 
since the Group is not exposed to any floating rate profit bearing assets and liabilities.
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20 MARKET RISK (continued) 
 
20.2 Foreign currency risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. 
 
Foreign currency risk is managed by the treasury department of the Parent Company on the basis of limits 
determined by the Group’s Board of Directors and a continuous assessment of the Group’s open positions and 
current and expected exchange rate movements. Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses 
due to exchange rate fluctuations and consequently the Group does not hedge foreign currency exposures. 
 
The effect on loss for the year (due to change in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities), as a result of 
change in currency rate, with all other variables held constant is shown below: 
 

 2014  2013 

Currency 

Change in 
currency rate 

in % 

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD

Change in 
currency rate in 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD
   

USD +3.5 36,463 +3.5 20,087
     

The effect of decrease in foreign currency exchange rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the 
increases shown. 
 
20.3 Equity price risk 
 
Equity price risk arises from changes in the fair values of equity investments. Equity price risk is managed by the 
direct investment department of the Parent Company. The unquoted equity price risk exposure arises from the 
Group’s investment portfolio. The Group manages this through diversification of investments in terms of 
geographical distribution and industry concentration. The majority of the Group’s quoted investments are listed 
on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. 
 
Quoted securities: 
The effect on other comprehensive income (as a result of a change in the fair value of financial assets available 
for sale) and Group’s loss (as a result of a change in the fair value of investments at fair value through profit or 
loss) due to a reasonably possible change in market indices, with all other variables held constant is as follows: 
 
 2014  2013 

Market indices 

Change in 
equity 
price 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD

 Change in 
equity 
price 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD
   

Kuwait +10 23,938  +10 118,821 
 

Unquoted securities: 
Sensitivity analysis relating to Group’s unquoted securities (financial assets available for sale and financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss) is included in Note 24.  
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19 MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued) 
 

   Within  6 to 12  1 to 2   Undated/ 
 3 months months years Over 2 years   Total 

2013 KD  KD  KD  KD  KD 
      
ASSETS      
Bank balances and short-term deposits 5,581,657             -                 -                 -     5,581,657 
Financial assets at fair value through 
  profit or loss             -     2,881,315             -                 -     2,881,315 
Financial assets available for sale             -                 -     11,007,532             -     11,007,532 
Investment in associates              -                 -                 -     34,050,726 34,050,726 
Investment properties             -                 -     3,262,912             -     3,262,912 
Other assets 1,884,878             -                 -     27,960 1,912,838 
Furniture and equipment             -     3,827             -                 -     3,827 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 
TOTAL ASSETS 7,466,535 2,885,142 14,270,444 34,078,686 58,700,807 
 ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═══════ 
LIABILITIES      
Murabaha payables  2,830,000 2,830,000 5,660,000  29,145,645 40,465,645 
Other liabilities 832,713             -     256,152             -     1,088,865 
 ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── ───────── 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,662,713 2,830,000 5,916,152 29,145,645  41,554,510 
═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ 

 
 
20 MARKET RISK  
 
Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market variables such as 
profit rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded in the market. 
 
Market risk is managed on the basis of pre-determined asset allocations across various asset categories, 
diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration, a continuous appraisal 
of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term changes in fair value.  
 
20.1 Profit rate risk 
 
Profit rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in profit rates will affect future cash flows or the fair 
values of the financial instruments. The Group is not exposed to profit rate risk on its profit bearing assets and 
liabilities (short-term deposits and murabaha payables) as a result of reasonably possible changes in profit rates 
since the Group is not exposed to any floating rate profit bearing assets and liabilities.
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20 MARKET RISK (continued) 
 
20.2 Foreign currency risk 
 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates. 
 
Foreign currency risk is managed by the treasury department of the Parent Company on the basis of limits 
determined by the Group’s Board of Directors and a continuous assessment of the Group’s open positions and 
current and expected exchange rate movements. Management believes that there is minimal risk of significant losses 
due to exchange rate fluctuations and consequently the Group does not hedge foreign currency exposures. 
 
The effect on loss for the year (due to change in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities), as a result of 
change in currency rate, with all other variables held constant is shown below: 
 

 2014  2013 

Currency 

Change in 
currency rate 

in % 

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD

Change in 
currency rate in 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD
   

USD +3.5 36,463 +3.5 20,087
     

The effect of decrease in foreign currency exchange rate is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the 
increases shown. 
 
20.3 Equity price risk 
 
Equity price risk arises from changes in the fair values of equity investments. Equity price risk is managed by the 
direct investment department of the Parent Company. The unquoted equity price risk exposure arises from the 
Group’s investment portfolio. The Group manages this through diversification of investments in terms of 
geographical distribution and industry concentration. The majority of the Group’s quoted investments are listed 
on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. 
 
Quoted securities: 
The effect on other comprehensive income (as a result of a change in the fair value of financial assets available 
for sale) and Group’s loss (as a result of a change in the fair value of investments at fair value through profit or 
loss) due to a reasonably possible change in market indices, with all other variables held constant is as follows: 
 
 2014  2013 

Market indices 

Change in 
equity 
price 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD

 Change in 
equity 
price 

%

Effect on loss 
for the year 

KD
   

Kuwait +10 23,938  +10 118,821 
 

Unquoted securities: 
Sensitivity analysis relating to Group’s unquoted securities (financial assets available for sale and financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss) is included in Note 24.  
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21 OPERATIONAL RISK  
 
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When 
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, 
or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control 
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls 
include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and 
assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. 
 
 
22 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.  
 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during 
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. 
 
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
Group includes within net debt, Islamic borrowings less bank balances and short-term deposits. Capital represents 
total equity. 

 
       2014 
      KD 

       2013 
      KD 

 
Islamic borrowings 35,632,310 40,465,645 
Less: Bank balances and short-term deposits (3,353,938) (5,581,657) 
  ───────  ─────── 
Net debt 32,278,372 34,883,988 
   
Total equity 14,726,942 17,146,297 
  ───────  ─────── 
Capital and net debt 47,005,314 52,030,285 
 ════════  ════════ 
Gearing ratio  68.67%   67.04%  
 ════════  ════════ 
 
 
23 FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
 
The total management fees earned by the Parent Company in fiduciary capacity for the year ended 31 December 
2014 amounted Nil(2013: Nil). The aggregate value of the assets held in a fiduciary capacity by the Group at 31 
December 2014 amounted to KD 40,751,103(2013: KD 58,989,441). 
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21 OPERATIONAL RISK  
 
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When 
controls fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, 
or lead to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control 
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls 
include effective segregation of duties, access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and 
assessment processes, including the use of internal audit. 
 
 
22 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
 
The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. 
 
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.  
 
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return 
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during 
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. 
 
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The 
Group includes within net debt, Islamic borrowings less bank balances and short-term deposits. Capital represents 
total equity. 

 
       2014 
      KD 

       2013 
      KD 

 
Islamic borrowings 35,632,310 40,465,645 
Less: Bank balances and short-term deposits (3,353,938) (5,581,657) 
  ───────  ─────── 
Net debt 32,278,372 34,883,988 
   
Total equity 14,726,942 17,146,297 
  ───────  ─────── 
Capital and net debt 47,005,314 52,030,285 
 ════════  ════════ 
Gearing ratio  68.67%   67.04%  
 ════════  ════════ 
 
 
23 FIDUCIARY ASSETS 
 
The total management fees earned by the Parent Company in fiduciary capacity for the year ended 31 December 
2014 amounted Nil(2013: Nil). The aggregate value of the assets held in a fiduciary capacity by the Group at 31 
December 2014 amounted to KD 40,751,103(2013: KD 58,989,441). 
 
 
  

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

35 

24 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in orderly 
transactions between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values of financial instruments, with the 
exception of certain financial assets available for sale carried at cost (note 9) are not materially different from their 
carrying values. 
 
The management has used to following methods and assumptions to estimate the fair values of financial assets: 
 

• Quoted equity securities have been fair valued based on their latest price quotations on the respective stock 
exchange at the reporting date. 

• Fair values of unquoted equity securities are derived through a market approach which utilises price 
multiples of comparable quoted companies.A lack of marketability discount is applied on the fair values 
derived through this approach which ranges from 10% to 15% (2013: 10% to 15%) and is based on the 
management’s judgment. A 5% increase in the lack of marketability discount will result in a decrease in 
fair values of these securities by KD 235,760 (2013: KD 356,267). 

• Fair values of unquoted funds are measured based on their latest net asset values provided by the respective 
fund manager. 

 
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy: 
The Group uses the hierarchy disclosed in Note 2 for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial 
instruments. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the 
fair value hierarchy: 
 Level: 1 Level: 3 Total fair value
2014 KD  KD KD 
    
Financial assets at fair value   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    
-  Quoted equity securities 393,938         -     393,938 
-  Unquoted equity securities             -      306,049 306,049 
-  Unquoted funds              -      77,638 77,638 

   
Financial assets available for sale:    
-  Unquoted equity securities             -      4,872,567 4,872,567 
 - Unquoted funds              -      665,259 665,259 

──────── ──────── ────────
 393,938 5,921,513 6,315,451 

════════ ════════ ════════
 
 Level: 1 Level: 3 Total fair value
2013 KD  KD KD 
    
Financial assets at fair value   
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss    
-  Quoted equity securities 1,031,425             -     1,031,425 
-  Unquoted equity securities             -       1,367,963 1,367,963 
-  Unquoted funds              -       481,927 481,927 

   
Financial assets available for sale:    
-  Unquoted equity securities             -       5,855,171 5,855,171 
 - Unquoted funds              -       1,113,449 1,113,449 

──────── ──────── ────────
 1,031,425 8,818,510 9,849,935 

════════ ════════ ════════
 
There have been no transfers between the hierarchies during the year. 
 

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements



62

Gulf Investment House K.S.C.P. and Subsidiaries 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
As at 31 December 2014 
 

36 

24 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 
The movement in Level 3 fair value hierarchy during the year is given below: 

As at  
1 January 

 2014 

Transferred 
from carried 

at cost 

Unrealised 
loss recorded in 
the consolidated

statement of 
income

Unrealisedlossre
corded in 

consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive
income 

Impairment 
recorded in 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive
income 

Net (sales)  
purchase and 

settlement 

As at 
 31December 

 2014 
 KD  KD KD  KD  KD KD KD  
        
Assets measured at fair value        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
-  Unquoted equity securities 1,367,963               -     (123,168)  -                  -     (938,746) 306,049 
-  Unquoted funds 481,927               -     (22,501) -                   -     (381,788)    77,638 
        
Financial assets available for sale:        
-  Unquoted equity securities 5,855,171               -                   -     (158,559) (275,198) (548,847) 4,872,567 
 - Unquoted funds 1,113,449 185,626               -     (22,451) (85,343) (526,022) 665,259 

 ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── 
 8,818,510 185,626 (145,669) (181,010) (360,541) (2,395,403) 5,921,513 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ 
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24 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 
 

As at 1  
January

2013 

Transferred 
from carried 

at cost 

Unrealised 
(loss) gain 

recorded in the 
consolidated 
statement of 

income

Unrealised loss 
recorded in 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive
income 

Impairment 
recorded in 
consolidated 
statement of 

comprehensive
income 

Net (sales)  
purchase and 

settlement 

As at  
31 December 

 2013 
 KD  KD KD  KD  KD KD KD  
        
Assets measured at fair value        
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:        
-  Unquoted equity securities 5,565,413 -     (275,753) -     -       (3,921,697) 1,367,963 
-  Unquoted funds 448,379 -     33,548 -     -       -      481,927 
        
Financial assets available for sale:        
-  Unquoted equity securities 1,238,851 1,725,058 -      (83,889) (585,712) 3,560,863 5,855,171 
- Unquoted funds 553,578 764,142 -      (60,072) (16,267) (127,932) 1,113,449 

 ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── 
 7,806,221  2,489,200 (242,205) (143,961) (601,979) (488,766) 8,818,510 
 ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ 
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